
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY OCTOBER 7, 2019 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 

Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business are 

public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may therefore be 

subject to public disclosure.    
AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance  
2. Welcome 

 

G. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
1.  Update from the West Branch City Safety Committee – Presented by Jose Gongora 

 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments 

may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite 

the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on 

the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting September 16, 2019. 
 
2. Motion to Approve the Appointment of Ty Doermann to the Nuisance Appeal Hearing 

Board.   
 
3. Motion to Approve Casey’s General Store #3463 – Privilege Change – adding Class B 

Carryout Wine Effective 11/1/2019. 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

4. Resolution 1841 – Authorizing an Amount Not to Exceed $2,873 for Artist Services from 
the University of Iowa for the Design and Development of a Mural. 

 
5. Motion to Approve a Quote in the Amount Not to Exceed $5,272.00 for Carpentry 

Services from Westgard Woodworks for the Finishing and Installation of Town Hall Entry 
Doors. 

 
6. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda  

1. Resolution 1842 – Approving the final plat for The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, 
West Branch. 

 
2. Resolution 1843 – Approving the final plat for The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, 

West Branch. 
 
3. Discussion Item: Wapsinonic Creek Widening.   
 
4. Discussion Item: Concerns and Complaints Regarding Parking Privileges on Division 

Street. 
 
5. Discussion Item: Regarding Several Traffic Control Issues and/or Concerns Related to 

New Development. 
 
6. Discussion Item:  A Clarification on the City Council’s Direction Regarding a Year Test 

Program to Establish Alcohol Retail at the Cubby Park Pavilion. 
 
7. Discussion Item: Regarding Policy on Waivers for Sewer Service Charges. 
 
8. Motion to Approve a Sewer Credit for Millie Verlo (424 E. Main Street). 
 
9. Motion to Approve a Sewer Credit for James McLain, 700 Sullivan Street. 
 
10. Resolution 1840 – Approving a Professional Service Agreement with Simmering-

Cory, Iowa Codification in the Amount of $7,000. 
 
11. Resolution 1844 – Accepting the Low Quotes for the Demolition and Salvage of 

Structures A and B at 325 E. Green Street (A.K.A. the Former Croell Ready Mix Site).     
 
12. Motion to Accept a Quote from Alpha Graphics in the Amount of $692.34 for 

printing and mailing services for a postcard mailing regarding the Capital 
Improvement Reserve Levy which will be on the November Ballot. 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report  
2. City Attorney Report  
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

J. Adjournment 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting          September 16, 2019  

Council Chambers                    7:00 p.m.                                                                                                      
  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin then 

invited the Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Roll call: Council members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler and Jordan Ellyson were present.  

Brian Pierce was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator 

Redmond Jones, Deputy Clerk Gordon Edgar, Public Works Director Matt Goodale, and Police Chief Mike 

Horihan.    
 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Carolyn Anderson, Executive Director of the West Branch Community Development Group, presented a report 

on the CDG budget for 2018.  She noted, that during the past year, the CDG office was relocated to space in the 

Heritage Museum in exchange for paying a portion of the utility bills.  One of the recent program activities was an 

exchange of eight members from Main Street Grundy Center visiting West Branch was friendly, inviting and 

quaint but also it lacked street signs downtown, there were no signs directing people to the Hoover site if they 

entered the city from the north, east, or west.  She also noted that the Smithsonian Institution’s Museum on Main 

Street will visit West Branch in November and December of 2020. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

 

 

Jim McLain, 700 Sullivan Street, addressed the Council and asked for sewer forgiveness on a recent utility bill. 

McLain said he was unaware that landscape meters were available for residential watering until a neighbor 

mentioned that the City offers the free service.  McLain said he had spoken with City staff earlier in the day and 

found that while the City does offer meters for summer watering, there is limited supply and encouraged McLain 

to purchase a landscape meter and have it installed at his home for his future watering needs.  Laughlin responded 

that the City typically does not provide refunds for this type of request and denied McLain’s request. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting September 3, 2019. 

Motion to approve a block party permit application (Merle Eggert requesting).  

Motion to approve the West Branch Fire Department appointment of Dan Powers. 

Motion to accept the Staff Work Plan. 

Motion to approve the Claims Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES: Miller, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Ellyson.  Absent: Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 
Discussion: Consideration to accept Needham Excavating’s Grass/Weed Plan for Cubby Park.  Additionally, 

consideration to accept a partial acceptance of the project (No formal request has been submitted). 

Kass said he was prepared to answer any questions the Council had on Needham’s proposal and timeline 

presented.  Council noted that the park looked much better now that it had been mowed although they said it was 

noted from outside the barricades.  The Council agreed with Needham’s plan but questioned the timeline and 

what if any other of the items had been taken care of besides the mowing.  Kass was not sure if the spraying had 

been done, as he is not always present when the contractor was.  Kass said he would communicate with Needham 

on the City’s acceptance of the grass/weed plan and also noted that Needham has hired a landscaping company 

from Bettendorf who has the expertise and that this company would be doing the work.  The Council directed 

Kass to request a final walk through for no later than September 12th in order for them to consider final 

acceptance of the park at their September 16th meeting.  Kass said he would not recommend final acceptance until 

all punch list items were complete in addition to the grass/weed plan.  City Attorney Olson was not present to 

discuss liquidated damages the project may incur. 
 
Resolution 1821 – Approving Change Order #9 in the amount of $2,356.59 for roll-up insect screening required 

for the Cubby Park concession stand at the pavilion. /Move to action. 

Jones said he was able to find documentation for the screening requirement and provided that information to the 

Council.  The Council agreed to follow the Iowa Department of Inspection and Appeals requirements.   (This item 

was previously tabled for more information.) 

Motion by Miller, second by Pierce to approve the Resolution 1821.  AYES:  Miller, Pierce, Goodweiler, YS:   

 
  

 

who manages and lives at the West Branch Village said he didn’t think that the new owners would be accepting of 

the idea, but it didn’t hurt for the City to send Haven Park a letter with the its proposal.    
 
Motion to approve and accept a quote from Zippy’s Salt Barn LLC for bulk de–icing solution in the amount       

$115.99 per ton for 125 tons. / Move to action. 

  

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones asked the Council if anyone wanted to attend the Iowa League of Cities conference in Dubuque next week.  

He did not receive any commitments to attend.  Jones said he will attend a Community Catalyst Training in 

Brooklyn, Iowa on September 17th.  Jones said he has requested an extension of the deadline to clean up the 

former Croell site to next spring. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No comments. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  

No comments.   
 
COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Miller asked if P&Z was going to outlaw the fireworks stand on Larry Lynch’s property south of I-80.  Jones 

replied that he thought P&Z wanted to designate that as the only zone in town where fireworks could be sold.  



 

 

Miller commented that since the entrance of the golf course has been moved, the traffic flow has changed and the 

road seems more dangerous now. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting 

adjourned at 8:15 p.m.  

       

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________ 

 Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Appointment of Ty Doermann to the Nuisance 

Hearing Board.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 2, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

In adherence with 50.10 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of West Branch, a Nuisance 

hearing committee is to established in order to provide accused nuisance violators the 

opportunity for hearing.  The findings of this body shall be conclusive and, if a nuisance is found 

to exist, it shall be ordered abated within a reasonable time under the circumstances, any further 

appeal or appeal of the hearing committee’s decision may be had by filing a claim with the 

district court. 

 

The committee will have the discretion to assign reasonable time period(s) to comply with 

abatement orders.  If the owner refuse to abide by the terms set forth by the committee a 

placarded will be affixed to the property indicating two days to comply or file claim with district 

court.  If a claim is filed in district court, it the responsibility of the owner to copy the city with 

court filing documents before the stated compliance timeline.     

 

The hearing committee will exercise in a quasi-judicial role with the authority to hold hearings 

and conduct investigations into disputed nuisance abatement claims.  Alleged infractions will be 

ruled in accordance with and guided by Chapter 50 of the West Branch code of ordinances.  

 

This will be a three member body, seated by the Mayor, a City Councilperson, and a member of 

the public.  Mr. Doermann has agreed to serve in this capacity. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Casey’s General Store #3463 – Privilege Change – 

adding Class B Carryout Wine Effective 11/1/2019. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 2, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve the addition of Class B Carryout Wine privileges for Casey’s Marketing Company, dba 

Casey’s General Store #3463 at 615 S. Downey Street, effective November 1, 2019 through 

March 30, 2020. 

 

In addition, due to a retirement there is an Officer change.  Michael Richardson has retired 

from the Company as President and effective June 29, 2019, Megan Elfers has been appointed 

as President.  Appropriate documentation has been received regarding this change. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1841 – Authorizing an Amount Not to Exceed $2,873 for 

Artist Services from the University of Iowa for the Design and 

Development of a Mural. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator / Rod Ness, CCEDCO 

DATE:  October 2, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Mural Project started as an idea developed in our Great Places Grant application.  Our 

application was not approved.  However, mural concept was popular with several Cedar 

County communities.  As a result, the Cedar County Economic Development Commission 

decided to take the leadership role in coordinating the relationship between the University of 

Iowa (who house several artists) and various hosting Cedar County communities.     
 
These mural projects are a cultural investment that several Cedar County cities hope to offer 

more than just pretty picture.  Supporting this project hopes to contribute to increase tourism, 

improved aesthetics, increased business traffic and building occupancy, and eradication of 

blight.  The original goal of the Great Places grant application was to use murals to uniquely 

identity each community; yet, contribute to a cultural cohesiveness that can become a long 

term community asset.    
 
This item solidifies an arrangement where the University agrees to pay $2,500.00 in artist fees 

to the artist and fringe in the amount of $296.00 in accordance with the employment offer letter 

between the University and the artist; and 
  
The City agrees to pay an amount not to exceed $2,873.00 of invoiced project fees for the 

completion of the mural. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

Between 
 

The University of Iowa  

Iowa City, Iowa 
 

and 
 

City of West Branch 
West Branch, Iowa 

 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (hereinafter "Agreement") is made and entered into on October 

7, 2019 by and between The University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa; (hereinafter "University") and the City of 

West Branch, 110 N Poplar St, West Branch, IA 52358 (hereinafter "Supplier"). 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Supplier desires to collaborate with the University on a public art project 

consisting of the installation of a painted mural for Supplier.    

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the University to enter into an Agreement with Supplier to provide 

The University of Iowa with services as outlined in this agreement. 

 

THEREFORE, In consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants contained therein, the 
Parties agrees to the following terms and conditions.  

 
TERM 

 
This Agreement shall begin on or about June 1, 2019 and remain in effect through and including 

December 31, 2019 unless earlier terminated. 

 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 

Termination for Breach of Agreement: The University may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days written 

notice for breach of this Agreement or any obligation thereof by the Supplier. 

 

Termination for Convenience: The University may terminate at any time within the first 45 days of the initial 

contract or any and all extension periods, should the University determine the Supplier's performance is 

or becomes unsatisfactory in the sole opinion of the University, then the contract may be terminated. 

 

Supplier may terminate the Agreement any time within the first 45 days of the initial contract or any and all 

extension periods should the Supplier determine, in its sole discretion that the University is not acting in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract. 

 
LIABILITY 

 

Supplier Liability: To the fullest extent allowed by law, Supplier agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 

University of Iowa, the State of Iowa, the Board of Regents, State of Iowa and their agents and employees from 

and against all claims or losses including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from the 

negligence or omissions of the Supplier, its partners, directors, officers, employees, licensees, subcontractors 

or agents, in the provision of products and services under this contract. 

 

During the performance of Services, Supplier shall be in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws, 

and the Policies and Procedures of the Board of Regents, State of Iowa, and the University of Iowa, including 



 

 

but not limited to the University of Iowa Conflict of Interest policy.  Refer to University Operations Manual at 

www.uiowa.edu/~our/opmanual/ 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
University of Iowa student, Ali Hval, hereinafter referred to as the Artist, under the supervision of the University, 

will install a mural for the Supplier, according to the design selected from the Mural Design Proposal, incorporated 
herein. The Supplier agrees to partner with the University and Artist on this project.  

 
MURAL INSTALLATION 

 Mural shall be painted by the Artist at a location to be decided upon by the Supplier. 

 The executed mural will faithfully reflect the final design. Any alterations of the design after commencing 
shall be approved by the Supplier and/or University. 

 The mural will be executed by the Artist in a professional and timely manner, in close communication with 
the Supplier and University, and in accordance with an agreed upon schedule. 

 The Artist shall use lightfast, professional quality materials supplied by Nova Color, Montana, or a similar 
product specified for long term exterior use and light exposure approved by the University. 

 The Artist will varnish the mural using Nova Color Satin Exterior Varnish 216, applied with a brush or 
sprayed, or a similar non-yellowing exterior varnish approved by the University. 

 The Artist will complete the mural using best practices. 

 The Artist shall not be responsible for delamination sourced internally (e.g. failure of wall cap, flashing, 
etc.), or vandalism, accidental damage, or graffiti. 

 
SCHEDULE 
 Work shall commence no earlier that October 1 and be finished on or before June 30, 2020 pending 

weather delays. It is estimated that it will take approximately 3 week(s) to complete the mural (depending 

on weather, paint drying times, etc.). 

 The Artist’s standard work hours will be Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 

 Unexpected delays due to weather, health or injury, will be accommodated within reason, and to the best 
of the ability of the artist and the University in consensus agreement. Artist shall communicate closely with 
the Supplier and University in regards to any project delays or unanticipated challenges. 

 
SITE PREPARATION / MATERIALS 

 The Supplier will secure all necessary permissions and permits for the installation of the mural. In some 
cases, the Supplier may need to enter into an agreement with a private property owner.  

 The overall site repair and preparation will be completed by and paid for by the Supplier, before painting 

of the mural begins. 

 The Supplier will have the substrate assessed by a professional for any needed repairs (e.g. cracks, 

gauges, and/or buckling in the brick, mortar joints, carpentry, and plaster) and pay for any associated 

fees. Completing any needed repairs is recommended to promote the mural’s longevity.  In addition, the 

Supplier will have the wall cleaned of dirt, debris, and flaking paint.  

 Bare walls will be properly cleaned and prepped by the Supplier and allowed to dry sufficiently before 

priming and pay for any associated fees. 

 Bare walls shall be primed with a high-grade professional product designed for exterior applications by the 

Artist, and product will be purchased by the University. 

 The University will purchase all other materials described in the Mural Design Proposal.  

 
EQUIPMENT / SECURITY / SAFETY 

 The Supplier will provide scaffolding (and provide a contact person to adjust the scaffolding, as needed, 

throughout the duration of the project) or a lift and pay for any associated fees. The Supplier will provide 

throughout the duration of the project (for scaffolding: also a number to call in case it needs to be moved 

from time to time). 

 The Supplier, at its discretion, may request work to be temporarily suspended in order to accommodate 
large events or other maintenance activities associated with the location. 

 The Artist will place tarps and secure them at the base of the wall’s entirety to protect the sidewalks. The 

Artist will “pack it in / pack it out,” maintaining a clean and orderly jobsite, sweeping up loose paint, using 

drop cloths/plywood/cardboard if necessary.  

http://www.uiowa.edu/~our/opmanual/


 

 

 The Supplier will provide access to nearby storage space for supplies, identify a restroom for Artist to use 

near the project site during working hours  a nearby water source, and secure overnight housing for the 

Artist (if necessary) and pay for any associated fees..  

 Scaffolding, ladders, and lifts may be stored on site during the project, but materials including paint shall 

be stored off site, or in a secured location on site (e.g. locked tool box or in the raised bucket of a lift). The 

Artist will be responsible for security of any supplies bought, borrowed, or rented. 

 The Artist will adhere to all government safety protocols as outlined by the Occupational Health and 
Safety Administration (OSHA) of the United States Department of Labor. These regulations can be found 
at osha.gov and are the responsibility of the Artist to follow when using scaffolding, ladders, and lifts, etc. 

 If in an active alley/sidewalk location, bases of scaffolding, ladders, and lifts shall be traffic coned by the 
Artist at all times during active and inactive periods of use. Cones will be provided by the Supplier. 

 
DOCUMENTATION / PUBLICITY 

 The Artist shall be available within reason to aid Supplier and University marketing efforts, and agrees to 
allow the progress of the mural to be documented by the University, as well as the final piece. 

 The Supplier and University will own the rights to the documentary images, and they will be used to 
promote the project and the artist in traditional print and social media platforms. Artist may have fair-use of 
the publicity images, but may not profit from their use (e.g. sell the images as prints). Similarly, the 
Supplier will not sell or directly profit from images of the mural in accordance with US copyright law and 
the 1990 Visual Artists Rights Act (VARA). 

 
OWNERSHIP / RIGHTS/ FUTURE 

 The Artist agrees to the perpetual license of the right to display and transmit the work to Supplier, 

excluding the right to authorship credit and modification. The Supplier does not need to display the Artist’s 

name together with the mural, unless being described with any editorial usage, but Supplier may not seek 

to mislead others that the mural was created by anyone other than the Artist. 

 The Artist retains access to the mural image for his/her professional portfolio or promotional use. The 

Artist will retain exclusive right to make and distribute copies, to display the work publicly, and to make 

derivative works (subsequent copyrightable creations based on the original work) in line with US copyright 

law, protecting the mural as an “original work of authorship fixed in [a] tangible medium of expression.” 

 The Artist agrees that the mural is produced with the intent that it be unique.  

 In accordance with VARA, the artist shall have the right to “prevent any intentional distortion, mutilation, or 
other modification of that work which would be prejudicial to his or her honor or reputation, and any 
intentional distortion, mutilation, or modification of that work is a violation of that right, and to prevent any 
destruction of a work of recognized stature.” 

 Unless otherwise noted, the Supplier is expected to maintain the mural for at a minimum of five (5) years 
from completion and pay for any associated fees. However, if the Supplier plans to demolish or paint over 
the mural prior that time, the Supplier must make efforts to contact the University and the Artist. The 
Supplier must make reasonable effort to contact the Artist to make repairs to the mural within the five (5) 
years.  

 Upon completion, the Artist shall present a PDF indicating technical specifications for all 
primers/paints/colors/varnish/etc. used in the mural, as well as multiple forms of contact information for 
the artist. 

 

THE SUPPLIER AGREES TO 
 

1. Provide a single point managerial-level contact for the University to coordinate all 
requirements; to be the point of contact for any problems/questions that may arise; meet 
periodically with University personnel; research information; and deliver special reports as 
needed or directed by the University related to the Scope of Work. 

 

Supplier's Single Point Contact Person:   

Name: Redmond Jones 

Title: City Administrator 

Address: 110 N Poplar St. 

                             West Branch, IA 52358 

Email: redmond@westbranchiowa.org 

Phone: 319.643.5888 



 

 

 
2. Comply with all applicable Federal and State laws. 

 
3. To possess and maintain all applicable licenses necessary to conduct business in the State 

of Iowa. 

 
4. Intentionally Omitted. 

 
5. Intentionally Omitted. 

 
6. Supplier is an independent Supplier and shall not be considered the agent or employee of 

the University. 
 

FEE STRUCTURE OR PRODUCT PRICING 

The University agrees to pay $2,500 in artist fees to the artist and fringe in the amount of $296, 

in accordance with the employment offer letter between the University and Artist.  

 

The Supplier agrees to pay a $2,873 invoiced project fee. The University will invoice the 

Supplier following completion of the mural installation.  

 

If the Artist fails to complete the mural installation, the payment to the Artist will be prorated 

based on percentage of completion, as determined by the University and Supplier. In this event, 

the University will invoice the Supplier for that amount.   

 

The Supplier agrees to pay any and all fees as indicated in the SITE PREPATION/MATERIALS, 

EQUIPMENT/SECURITY/SAFETY, and OWNERSHIP/RIGHTS/FUTURE sections of the scope of work.  

 

The University agrees to pay any and all fees as indicated in the SITE PREPATION/MATERIALS, 

EQUIPMENT/SECURITY/SAFETY, and OWNERSHIP/RIGHTS/FUTURE sections of the scope of work. 

 

This Agreement including incorporated addenda shall constitute the entire agreement between the 

Parties and shall supersede all previous agreements, written or oral. No modification or waiver of 

any provision shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the Parties. 
 

In the event any portion of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 
the remainder of the Agreement shall remain intact. That portion deemed invalid shall be amended 
in writing to the minimum extent necessary to be considered valid and enforceable. 

 

The Supplier may not assign this Agreement without prior written consent of the University. The 
Parties agree that the term assigned includes acquisition of the Supplier by another party. Supplier 
agrees to provide the University with written notice of any assignment a minimum of thirty (30) 
business days prior to date of such event. 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and applicable Federal law. 
 

The University's failure to enforce provisions of this Agreement in whole or in part will not negate 
the Agreement or the enforcement of provisions at a future time. 

 

The Parties are acting herein as independent Suppliers. Nothing herein contained shall create or be 

construed as creating a partnership, joint venture or Supplier relationship between any of the 

Parties and no Party shall have the authority to bind the other Party in any respect. 

 



 

 

Having read and understood this Memorandum of Agreement in witness thereof, the Parties 

have hereunto signed this Agreement. 
 

 

THE UNIVERSITY OF IOWA 

The Office of Outreach and Engagement 

782 Van Allen Hall 

Iowa City, IA 52242-25000 

 

 

THE UNIVERSITY OF IOWA COMMUNITY PARTNER 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Name Name 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Title Title 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Date Date 
 

 
Acknowledged and Agreed by 

_________________________ 

Artist Name 

_________________________ 

Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

MURAL DESIGN PROPSAL 
PREPARED FOR WEST BRANCH 

BY ALI HVAL 

7/15/19 

 
 

 

 

PROPOSED MURAL DESIGN 1 

 

Mural will include West Branch identifiers such as the West Branch HS mascot—the 

bear, the Friends Meeting House to reflect the Quaker heritage, an image of Harriet 

Tubman and people walking to represent West Branch a stop on the Underground 

Railroad, and a portrait of Herbert Hoover and an image of his birthplace. Local crops 

will be included in the grid as well as flanking the mural. 

 

 

 
Colors to be similar to the mock up below: 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

PROPOSED MURAL DESIGN 2 

 

Keeping with the same content above, but in a large format Place Name mural. 

 

 

MURAL DESIGN 2 COLOR SCHEME 1 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The COMMUNITY PARTNER accepts Mural Design option _1___. 
  

_________________________ 

COMMUNITY PARTNER Name 

_________________________ 

Title 

_________________________ 

Date 
 

 
Acknowledged and Agreed by Acknowledged and Agreed by 

_________________________ _________________________ 

Artist Name OO&E Representative  

_________________________ _________________________ 

Date Date 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1841 

 

AUTHORIZING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,873 FOR ARTIST SERVICES 

FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF IOWA FOR THE DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT OF 

A MURAL. 

 

  WHEREAS, this initiative was originated with the Great Places Grant 

application two years ago; and   

 

  WHEREAS, the concept of having murals in several cedar county communities 

that are unique to the community yet ties in a cultural cohesiveness that brings Cedar County 

together; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the University of Iowa’s Office of Outreach and Engagement has 

agreed to participate in matching funds in order to assist communities meet the goals and mission 

of this mural project; and the City of West Branch has found the sharing of expenses for the artist 

services to be of high quality and reasonably priced; and 

 

WHEREAS, the cost to complete the mural is $5,669.00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the University agrees to pay $2,796.00 in artist fees and fringe 

benefits as per the employment agreement between the University and the Artist; and  

 

  WHEREAS, the city as a part of this agreement will pay a $2,873.00 invoice 

project fee as stipulated in said agreement. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreement with the University of Iowa’s Office of 

Outreach and Engagement, is hereby approved.  Further, the City Administrator is directed to 

execute the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Quote in the Amount Not to Exceed $5,272.00 for 

Carpentry Services from Westgard Woodworks for the Finishing and 

Installation of Town Hall Entry Doors. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  October 4, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This item was approved last fiscal year as a part of the improvements to town hall city council 

goal.  Due to the workload of the contractor this item could not be scheduled until now.  The 

funds will still come out of the “maintenance of city owned civic center” levy; which we 

budgeted / levied $18,280 this fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 5 



 

 

Westgard Woodworks 

4358 Sharon Center Rd. SW 

Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

(319)621-6408 

 

 

10/3/2019 

 

 

Customer:       City of West Branch 

  Melissa Russel -Parks and Recreation Director 

  201 East Main Street 

  West Branch, Iowa 52358   

  

Town Hall Entry Door Installation Estimate: 

 

Work to include:   

 removing old doors and hardware from existing openings 

 Ordering and procuring the new hardware to replace existing 

 That will include:   

Emtek Denver Mortise Locking Latch/Handle $596.00 

    Emtek heavy duty Hinges and Ball tips $207.00 

   Emtek Kick Stop $23.00 

   Emtek Flush Bolts $26.00 

   Norton Door Closer  $1080.00 (priced out warren’s suggestion-  

have an alternate option for $300) 

   Weather Strip and Door Sweep $20.00 

  (Finish on the Door hardware is to be Flat Black- and if possible brass 

on the interior portions) 

   Door Hardware parts Total:  $1192.00-1952.00 

 

 

 Door Finishing- by Matt Pugh of Finish Matters $800.00 

 

 To include prime and exterior white paint to match building 

exterior 

 Durable stain and Clear coat to best match interior woodwork. 

 

Modification, Mortising and installation of Door to Fit existing opening by Westgard 

Woodworks. $2500.00 

 

 

Total Price:   

$4492.00- 5272.00 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Payments: 

 

 50%    Due upon commitment to project 

 50%    Due upon completion of project 

 

Please sign below: 

 

X__________________________________Date___________ 

 

Thank You for Choosing Westgard Woodworks!!!! 

 

 
Business Policies: 
 

 Westgard Woodworks offers a 5-year warranty against defects of workmanship as our assurance that you can 
count on many years of enjoyment. 

 

 Any work estimated over the amount of $500 will require a 50% deposit. 
 

 A 50% deposit is required upfront and secures your place in the next available spot on the schedule of Westgard 
Woodworks.  This represents a commitment on the part of the client.  Deposit is refundable at the sole discretion 
of Westgard Woodworks. 

 

 The final payment of 50% is due upon completion of the job unless otherwise agreed upon between client and 
Westgard Woodworks.   

 

 

 Any change in the original bid may result in additional charges.  Any additional charges will be reflected in an email 
document.   

 

 

 If bid includes installation, unless otherwise specified or agreed upon, it is with the understanding that the 
installation will be scheduled to be during normal business hours and over an uninterrupted period of days.  If 
there are factors that do not allow for installation in that scheduled period of time there will be a fee assessed to 
cover additional “set-up and knock-down” time. 

 

 Delinquent payment past billing date will be assessed a 3% finance charge monthly until balance is received. 
 

 Unless discussed and accounted for in the above contract, any completion dates expressed or implied are 
approximate  as with each project, care is taken on doing the project right, which may require more time than is 
initially estimated. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1842 – Approving the final plat for The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part 4A, West Branch. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick on behalf of Kevin Olson  

DATE:  October 3, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
KLM Investments has requested to final plat a certain part of The Meadows, Part 4 to include 

three lots from The Meadows, Part 3B.  This portion of The Meadow’s Subdivision will now be 

known as The Meadow’s Part 4A and will include final platting of twenty-eight (28) lots. 

 

Lots 1-3 RB-1  Residence Business 

Lots 4-16 R-1  Single Family Residence 

Lots 17-20  R-2  Two Family Residence 

Lots 21-28 R-1 Single Family Residence 

 

All rezoning of the above lots have been previously approved by City Ordinances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution 1842 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, 1400 5th Street, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319) 351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319) 643-5888 

 

RESOLUTION 1842 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN SUBDIVIDER’S 

AGREEMENT FOR THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART FOUR, WEST BRANCH, 

IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments, LLC (the “Subdivider”) and the City of West Branch 

(the “City”) entered into to that certain Subdivider’s Agreement (the “Agreement”) recorded in 

Book 1452 at Page 262, Records of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Subdivider and City entered into the Agreement as part of the 

approval of the Preliminary Plat of The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four (the “Subdivision”); 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Subdivider has decided to only final plat a portion of the Subdivision, 

said final plat being referred to as “The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in order to ensure that marketable title can be given for the lots in The 

Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, the Agreement will need to be amended to reflect the new lot 

numbering and configuration; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has drafted a proposed Amendment that requires 

approval by the City Council. 
  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the aforementioned Amendment be and the same is hereby approved. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor Pro-tem and City Clerk are directed to 

execute the Amendment on behalf of the City and place this Resolution, along with the Amendment, on 

file in the Office of the Cedar County Recorder. 

  

* * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Colton Miller, Mayor Pro-tem 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1843 – Approving the final plat for The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part 4A, West Branch. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick on behalf of Kevin Olson  

DATE:  October 3, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
KLM Investments has requested to final plat a certain part of The Meadows, Part 4 to include 

three lots from The Meadows, Part 3B.  This portion of The Meadow’s Subdivision will now be 

known as The Meadow’s Part 4A and will include final platting of twenty-eight (28) lots. 

 

Lots 1-3 RB-1  Residence Business 

Lots 4-16 R-1  Single Family Residence 

Lots 17-20  R-2  Two Family Residence 

Lots 21-28 R-1 Single Family Residence 

 

All rezoning of the above lots have been previously approved by City Ordinances. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Resolution 1843 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



80.00' S49° 0
4' 01"W

134.00'

C1
2

L26

C13L27

L28
C16

C24

L32

C36

L36 C3
7

L37

OUTLOT A
5.65 AC

245,967 SF

14
0.29 AC

12,418 SF

7
0.30 AC
13,021 SF

22
0.34 AC

14,755 SF

21
0.31 AC

13,541 SF
23

0.23 AC
10,047 SF

25
0.25 AC

10,674 SF

28
0.21 AC
8,960 SF

27
0.25 AC

10,770 SF

26
0.27 AC

11,671 SF

24
0.23 AC

10,051 SF

11
0.28 AC

12,087 SF

10
0.27 AC

11,921 SF

9
0.28 AC

12,242 SF

8
0.31 AC
13,610 SF

12
0.25 AC

10,956 SF

20
0.28 AC

12,278 SF

18
0.25 AC

10,720 SF

17
0.25 AC

10,720 SF

19
0.25 AC

10,720 SF

OUTLOT B
2.25 AC

98,027 SF

16
0.32 AC

14,073 SF

15
0.30 AC

13,096 SF

13
0.33 AC

14,159 SF

1
0.33 AC

14,332 SF

5
0.26 AC

11,176 SF

6
0.26 AC

11,366 SF

4
0.26 AC

11,176 SF

3
0.24 AC

10,617 SF

2
0.24 AC

10,617 SF

C3

81
.3

1'

S89° 19' 13"E
139.70'

99
.5

3'

108.33'

76
.0

0'

139.70'

76
.0

0'

76
.0

0'

139.70'

76
.0

0'

80
.0

0'

139.70'

80
.0

0'

80
.0

0'

S89° 19' 13"E
139.70'

80
.0

0'

69
.7

9'

C4
N89° 33' 57"E

139.82'

82
.7

2'

C5

N80° 55' 18"E

149.53'

10
2.

19
'

C6

N72° 16' 39"E

140.91' 72.39'

L3
5

N63° 38' 00"E

132.99' 100.87'

C7

N54° 59' 19"E

113.57'

L31

78.77'

C8
S40° 49' 46"E

116.00'

C9

L30

C1
0

85.30'
44.64'

N49° 0
4' 01"E

154.94'

92.38'

L25

C11

157.60'

L24

62.51'

67.14'

169.80'

S49° 0
4' 01"W

182.01'

80.93'

80.00'
80.93'

80.00'

80.00'

S0
3°

 1
3'

 3
0"

E
14

0.
00

'

L4

N22° 36' 59"W

125.00'

S0
1°

 2
0'

 0
5"

E
22

2.
06

'

S49° 0
4' 01"W

134.00'

80.00'

80.00'

134.00'

80.00'

80.00'

134.00'

80.00'

80.00'

S49° 0
4' 01"W

134.00'

62.11'

C1
2

L26

C13

L27

N19° 00' 26"W

152.11'

C14 104.03'
61.97'

S73° 44' 56"W

92.43'

L29

C17

S66° 33' 40"W

139.26'

C15
L28

C16

C18

S73° 44' 56"W

142.95' C19

S82° 40' 44"W
152.40'

56.34'

C20

N89° 19' 13"W
151.40'

59.37'

69
.7

9'

140.26'

80.79'

C21

80
.0

0'

129.00'

80.79'

80
.0

0'

N89° 19' 13"W
95.00'

N22° 20' 45"W

86.93'

C22
24

0.
19

'

L5

N32° 15' 26"W

179.55'

N40° 56' 50"W

220.89'

L2

N40° 52' 39"W

140.00'

L1

N26° 32' 05"W
  252.03'

N
00

° 4
0'

 4
3"

E 
   

 6
28

.7
2'

L15N87° 16' 57"E     526.45'

S0
2°

 5
1'

 4
2"

E 
   

 4
03

.8
8'

S57° 30' 03"E     273.91'

S74° 08' 16"E     365.98'

L14L13

L1
2 N85° 28' 43"W     277.46' L10

N71° 51' 36"W  259.28'

L9

C2

L8C1L7

S0
9°

 4
8'

 2
8"

W
14

6.
35

'

S38° 53' 07"E     499.31'

S58° 47' 20"E
126.13'

L6

N
07° 19' 49"W

  80.79'

N40° 55' 59"W
  889.23'

L11

S23° 26' 20"E  166.00'

15

14

13

12

11

10

9
8

6

5

4
3

2
26

25
24

23
22 21

4039383736
35

34

33

27

28

29

30

31

32

16

17

18

19

THE MEADOWS

SUBDIVISION PART 1

THE MEADOWS

SUBDIVISION PART 2

301.91'

AUDITOR'S PARCEL G

BOOK I PAGE 103

AUDITOR'S

PARCEL G

BOOK I PAGE 103

N
00

° 4
0'

 4
7"

E 
 4

91
.5

8'

C23

L34

N40° 55' 59"W
  362.63'

L33

C24

L32

L16 L17

L18
L19

L2
3

L2
2

L21
L20

N40° 55' 59"W
     649.23'

L3

LOT A
2.49 AC

108,419 SF

CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

LENGTH

151.84

140.95

40.75

10.22

80.00

80.00

80.00

80.00

54.80

39.32

39.22

39.32

113.30

RADIUS

300.00

352.59

25.00

530.25

530.25

530.25

530.25

530.25

530.25

25.00

25.00

25.00

300.00

DELTA

28°59'56"

22°54'13"

93°23'50"

1°06'14"

8°38'39"

8°38'39"

8°38'39"

8°38'39"

5°55'19"

90°06'13"

89°53'47"

90°06'13"

21°38'18"

CHORD DIR.

N85° 18' 30"E

S81° 52' 08"W

N46° 01' 08"W

N00° 07' 03"E

N04° 45' 23"W

N13° 24' 02"W

N22° 02' 41"W

N30° 41' 20"W

N37° 58' 18"W

N04° 07' 07"E

N85° 52' 53"W

S04° 07' 07"W

S59° 59' 23"W

CHORD LEN.

150.22

140.01

36.39

10.21

79.92

79.92

79.92

79.92

54.78

35.39

35.32

35.39

112.63

CURVE TABLE

CURVE #

C14

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20

C21

C22

C23

C24

C36

C37

LENGTH

80.16

58.28

39.22

86.87

80.00

79.42

80.58

10.22

37.79

361.05

125.87

107.27

28.98

RADIUS

366.00

366.00

25.00

464.23

464.23

464.23

464.23

464.23

25.00

497.00

333.00

285.00

25.00

DELTA

12°32'55"

9°07'22"

89°53'47"

10°43'17"

9°52'24"

9°48'06"

9°56'42"

1°15'39"

86°36'06"

41°37'22"

21°39'23"

21°33'52"

66°25'19"

CHORD DIR.

N64° 34' 04"E

N53° 43' 55"E

S85° 52' 53"E

S35° 34' 22"E

S25° 16' 32"E

S15° 26' 16"E

S05° 33' 52"E

S00° 02' 18"W

N43° 58' 50"E

N20° 07' 54"W

S59° 59' 56"W

S59° 57' 10"W

S15° 57' 35"W

CHORD LEN.

80.00

58.21

35.32

86.74

79.90

79.32

80.48

10.22

34.29

353.16

125.12

106.63

27.39

LINE TABLE

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

LENGTH

58.95

35.36

66.18

115.39

40.00

80.44

60.86

66.00

156.35

108.11

99.17

72.78

124.82

108.86

5.09

56.62

59.59

33.00

33.00

33.00

BEARING

N49° 07' 27"E

S49° 10' 14"W

S44° 53' 11"W

N03° 13' 30"W

S86° 46' 30"W

S82° 46' 48"E

S80° 11' 32"E

S19° 00' 26"E

S01° 20' 05"W

N77° 54' 25"W

N69° 36' 54"W

S01° 18' 36"E

N88° 40' 47"E

S81° 06' 34"E

N87° 09' 58"E

N87° 16' 57"E

N87° 16' 57"E

S19° 00' 26"E

S19° 00' 26"E

N40° 56' 50"W

LINE TABLE

LINE #

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L41

LENGTH

33.00

33.09

33.09

17.69

130.01

26.47

71.47

26.68

24.94

24.73

32.04

84.57

187.97

82.84

32.28

49.38

15.00

58.01

36.39

BEARING

N40° 56' 50"W

N44° 53' 11"E

N44° 53' 11"E

S32° 15' 26"E

S49° 10' 14"W

S49° 10' 14"W

N17° 47' 09"W

N49° 10' 14"E

S40° 55' 59"E

N40° 55' 59"W

S82° 10' 50"E

S49° 10' 14"W

S49° 10' 14"W

N40° 55' 59"W

S00° 40' 43"W

N49° 10' 14"E

N17° 47' 09"W

N34° 59' 51"W

N46° 01' 08"W

16.00'

L38

55.00' 76.43'

C3 108.33'
L41

.B

0 100 200SHEET NUMBER:

SHEET NAME: DRAWING LOG ENGINEER:

REV DATEDESCRIPTION OF CHANGES

PROJECT NAME:

CLIENT NAME:

ISSUED FOR:

PROJECT N0.: DATE ISSUED:PROJECT MANAGER: CURRENT REV:

WWW.AXIOM-CON.COM | (319) 519-6220

 Sep 23, 2019 - 4:48pm
 S:\PRO

JECTS\180024\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Plats\180024 FP.dw
g

1800241 OF 1 BOELK KLM, LLC

FINAL PLAT

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019

THE MEADOWS
PART 4A

B

19828
R. GEATER
BRADLEY

AWOI

PR
OF

ES
S IONAL LAND

SURV

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED AND THE
RELATED SURVEY WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL
SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF IOWA.

_____________________________________________________________________
SIGNED:                                                                                DATE:

BRADLEY R. GEATER, P.L.S., P.E.
LICENSE NUMBER 19828.
MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2019.
PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:  THIS PLAT

EYOR

FINAL PLAT
THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4A

WEST BRANCH, IOWA

FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY

RECORDER'S INDEX

COUNTY:

SECTION:

QUARTER SECTION:

CITY:

SUBDIVISION:

BLOCK:

LOT(S):

PROPRIETOR:

REQUESTED BY:

PREPARED BY:
AXIOM CONSULTANTS, LLC, 60 E. Court St. Unit 3
Iowa City, IA 52240 - PH# 319.519.6220

KLM INVESTMENTS, INC.

MEADOWS DEVELOPMENT, INC.

NA

THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4A

NOTES:
1. BASIS OF BEARING IS GPS MEASUREMENTS IN THE IOWA PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM

SOUTH ZONE NAD 83.
2. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN FEET AND HUNDREDTHS.
3. ERROR OF CLOSURE IS LESS THAN 1 IN 10,000.

CEDAR

6

SW1/4-SW1/4,NW1/4-SW1/4

NA

POINT OF BEGINNING
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 16 OF
THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART I
FND REBAR RPC #16546

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA

PROJECT
LOCATION

80

p no CreekaW is n co

YPC

SET 5/8" Ø REBAR OPC 19828

SET CUT X

FOUND PROPERTY CORNER-AS LABELED

YELLOW PLASTIC CAP

PROPOSED BOUNDARY/PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED EASEMENT

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

PREVIOUSLY RECORDED AS(R)

LEGEND

RPC RED PLASTIC CAP

1/2" REBAR

REBAR
YPC #8165

REBAR
YPC #8165

SOUTHWEST CORNER LOT 27
OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 2
FND REBAR YPC #8165

NORTHWEST CORNER LOT 32
OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 2
FND REBAR YPC #13287

WEST BRANCH

15
' P

.U
.E

.

15
' P

.U
.E

.

.

.

YPC #13287

YPC #13287

.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4A, BEING PART OF AUDITOR'S PARCEL G, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER'S
OFFICE, IN THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER
(NW ¼ ) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR
COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 16 OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART ONE, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PART ONE N26º32'05”W, 252.03 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE N49º07'27”E, 58.95 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE
N40º52'39”W, 140.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE S49º10'14”W, 35.36 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE N40º56'50”W, 220.89 FEET TO THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART TWO, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
SAID PART TWO N32º15'26”W, 179.55 FEET; THENCE S49º04'01”W, 182.01 FEET; THENCE S44°53'11"W, 66.18 FEET; THENCE S49º04'01”W, 134.00 FEET; THENCE
N40°55'59”W, 649.23 FEET; THENCE N22º36'59”W, 125.00 FEET; THENCE N03º13'30”W, 115.39 FEET; THENCE S86º46'30”W, 40.00 FEET; THENCE S03º13'30”E,
140.00 FEET; THENCE S01°20'05"E, 222.06 FEET; THENCE S82º46'48”E, 80.44 FEET; THENCE S58º47'20”E, 126.13 FEET; THENCE S38º53'07”E, 499.31 FEET; THENCE
S09º48'28”W, 146.35 FEET; THENCE S80ᵒ11'32”E, 60.86 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY 151.84 FEET ALONG A 300.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD
BEARING N85º18'30”E, 150.22 FEET); THENCE S19º00'26”E, 66.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY 140.95 FEET ALONG A 352.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH
(CHORD BEARING S81ᵒ52'08”W, 140.01 FEET); THENCE S01ᵒ20'05”W, 156.35 FEET; THENCE N71ᵒ51'36”W, 259.28 FEET; THENCE N77ᵒ54'25”W, 108.11 FEET;
THENCE N85ᵒ28'43”W, 277.46 FEET; THENCE N69ᵒ36'54”W, 99.17 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CEDAR JOHNSON ROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST
RIGHT OF WAY LINE S01ᵒ18'36”E, 72.78 FEET; THENCE N88ᵒ40'47”E, 124.82 FEET; THENCE S81ᵒ06'34”E, 108.86 FEET; THENCE S74ᵒ08'16”E, 365.98 FEET; THENCE
S57ᵒ30'03”E, 273.91 FEET; THENCE S02ᵒ51'42”E, 403.88 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF WEST MAIN STREET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF
WAY LINE N87ᵒ16'57”E, 526.45 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE N87ᵒ09'58”E, 5.09 FEET; THENCE N00ᵒ40'43”E, 628.72 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING.

DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 18.00 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD.

SIGNED BEFORE ME THIS ____________ DAY OF _______________, 20____ .

__________________________________________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC, IN AND FOR THE STATE OF IOWA.

UTILITY APPROVALS

ALLIANT ENERGY DATE

LINN COUNTY REC DATE

MEDIACOM DATE

CENTURYLINK DATE

LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS DATE

PLAT APPROVALS

CEDAR COUNTY AUDITOR:

OWNER / DEVELOPER DATE

WEST BRANCH CITY CLERK DATE

WEST BRANCH PLANNING & ZONING DATE

WEST BRANCH MAYOR DATE

66'

66'

66'

66'

KEY NOTES:

16' DRAINAGE AND STORM SEWER EASEMENT

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT-SEE DETAIL 1

STORM SEWER EASEMENT-SEE DETAIL 2

STORM SEWER EASEMENT-SEE DETAIL 3

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

A

C

B

D

E

A

A

.A

C

.D

.E

.E
.E

.E

.
.

.
.

E

E

E

E

DETAIL 3-KEYNOTE D

DETAIL 2-KEYNOTE C

DETAIL 1-KEYNOTE B

LOT 21

LOT 1

LOT 20

.E

YPC #13287

YPC #13287

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAWSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAWSON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SULLIVAN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE VIEW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ORANGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR-JOHNSON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST BRANCH CORPORATE LIMITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON  COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCOTT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGERT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOSTER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLIPHANT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPLAR ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNEY  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKSIDE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
( WEST BRANCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATE LIMITS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLTOP DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDERSEN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GILBERT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VIEW  DR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR  COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR / JOHNSON CO LINE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, 1400 5th Street, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319) 351-2277 

Return to:  City of West Branch, 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319) 643-5888 

 

RESOLUTION 1843 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART 

4A, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, the developer did file with the City Clerk of West Branch, a final  

 plat for The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, West Branch, Iowa; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the legal description for said Subdivision is as follows: 

 

THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION PART 4A, BEING PART OF AUDITOR'S PARCEL G, AS 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK I, PAGE 103 OF THE CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER'S OFFICE, IN 

THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL 

QUARTER (SW ¼) AND THE NORTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (NW ¼ ) OF THE 

SOUTHWEST FRACTIONAL QUARTER (SW ¼) OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 79 NORTH, 

RANGE 4 WEST, IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, CEDAR COUNTY, IOWA DESCRIBED AS: 

 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 16 OF THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION 

PART ONE, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, THENCE ALONG 

THE WEST LINE OF SAID PART ONE N26º32'05”W, 252.03 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID 

WEST LINE N49º07'27”E, 58.95 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE N40º52'39”W, 140.00 

FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE S49º10'14”W, 35.36 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID 

WEST LINE N40º56'50”W, 220.89 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE MEADOWS 

SUBDIVISION PART TWO, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW IN THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH; 

THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PART TWO N32º15'26”W, 179.55 FEET; THENCE 

S49º04'01”W, 182.01 FEET; THENCE S44°53'11"W, 66.18 FEET; THENCE S49º04'01”W, 134.00 

FEET; THENCE N40°55'59”W, 649.23 FEET; THENCE N22º36'59”W, 125.00 FEET; THENCE 

N03º13'30”W, 115.39 FEET; THENCE S86º46'30”W, 40.00 FEET; THENCE S03º13'30”E, 140.00 

FEET; THENCE S01°20'05"E, 222.06 FEET; THENCE S82º46'48”E, 80.44 FEET; THENCE 

S58º47'20”E, 126.13 FEET; THENCE S38º53'07”E, 499.31 FEET; THENCE S09º48'28”W, 146.35 

FEET; THENCE S80ᵒ11'32”E, 60.86 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY 151.84 FEET ALONG A 300.00 

FOOT RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING N85º18'30”E, 150.22 FEET); 

THENCE S19º00'26”E, 66.00 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY 140.95 FEET ALONG A 352.59 FOOT 

RADIUS CURVE CONCAVE NORTH (CHORD BEARING S81ᵒ52'08”W, 140.01 FEET); THENCE 

S01ᵒ20'05”W, 156.35 FEET; THENCE N71ᵒ51'36”W, 259.28 FEET; THENCE N77ᵒ54'25”W, 108.11 

FEET; THENCE N85ᵒ28'43”W, 277.46 FEET; THENCE N69ᵒ36'54”W, 99.17 FEET TO THE EAST 

RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF CEDAR JOHNSON ROAD; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF 

WAY LINE S01ᵒ18'36”E, 72.78 FEET; THENCE N88ᵒ40'47”E, 124.82 FEET; THENCE S81ᵒ06'34”E, 

108.86 FEET; THENCE S74ᵒ08'16”E, 365.98 FEET; THENCE S57ᵒ30'03”E, 273.91 FEET; THENCE 

S02ᵒ51'42”E, 403.88 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF WEST MAIN STREET; 

THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE N87ᵒ16'57”E, 526.45 FEET; THENCE 

ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE N87ᵒ09'58”E, 5.09 FEET; THENCE N00ᵒ40'43”E, 

628.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.   

 

DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS 18.00 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND 

RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

 

; and  



 

 

 

 WHEREAS, said property has been dedicated with the free consent and in accordance with the 

desires of the owner; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the aforementioned plat and subdivision is found to conform with Chapter 354 of 

the State Code of Iowa, Chapter 170 of the West Branch Code of Ordinances, and all other ordinances 

and statutory requirements; and 

  

 WHEREAS, said final platting of the aforementioned subdivision has been examined by the 

West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission; and  

 

 WHEREAS, recommendations from both said Commission and City Staff have been made; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberation, said Commission has recommended that the final platting 

of the proposed subdivision, be accepted and approved. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the final platting of The Meadows Subdivision, Part 4A, West Branch, Iowa, be and the same 

is hereby approved. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby authorized and directed to certify a copy of this Resolution to the County Recorder of Cedar 

County, Iowa, along with all other required ancillary documents. 

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Wapsinonic Creek Widening. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator @ Mayor’s Request 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

It has been a top priority on the city’s objective /goals list for the past two years.  However, the 

capital expense has been difficult to fund.  With the Cubby Park value engineering and 

contingency funding, the city has the opportunity to direct the remaining park funding to any 

other park capital project.  After review with the City’s Bond Counsel it was acknowledged 

that the City could use remaining Cubby funds for the Wapsi Creek Widening.  
 
A portion of the property needed for this project is owned by the Gaskill Family.  Professional 

Engineers are clear that this project is the one project that can make the most impact in the 

city’s effort to reduce downtown flash flooding and all of the negative effects that it has on our 

community.  Despite the immense public benefits this project could have; the Gaskill land 

owners have expressed a desire to not work with the city on this project.   
 
This leaves condemnation / eminent domain as our only course of action if this project is to be 

pursued any further. 

 

 

 

  e-mail 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Direction / Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 
 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

West Branch, Iowa 
(Initial Project Estimate) 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is an illustration of the area we would need from Gaskill for an easement to grade their parcel to 

improve drainage in the vicinity of the old railroad bridge.  Included is the area the city would need for the 

drainage ditch south of the public works garage that would discharge to the creek after crossing the Gaskill 

property near the lift station.  We would also need to remove the old truss bridge and need to provide 

alternate access to the old WWTP site.  By the time we factor in all these items, we are probably looking to 

get easement or acquire most of the area in yellow. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Concerns and Complaints Regarding Parking Privileges on 

Division Street. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Division Street – Robert’s Towing has renewed complaints about parking semi-trucks typically 

coming and going from neighboring business STS Transportations Services (Discussion item @ 

request of Colton Miller). 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction / Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Non Consent Item 4 

Roberts towing has claimed that has been delayed by 

parked trucks while trying to respond to emergency 

calls for service.  In the past the police department 

raised these concerns with STS complaints seemed 

to be reduced for a while, but these issues appear to 

on the rise once again.  When asked the other 

neighboring business on division remark that on 

occasion it has been an issue but from their 

prospective the issue resolves itself because the 

parking is usually short term. 



 

 

  
                  
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding Several Traffic Control Issues and/or 

Concerns Related to New Development. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  

     
BACKGROUND: 
  
Recommend No Parking on the Northside of Hilltop Dr. 300 ft. from Pedersen Street.  

The police department is getting several complaints of people parking on or near the curve 

towards the top of the hill (North side of the Road).  This would be the north side of Hilltop Dr. 

just west of Pedersen Street. The Hill and curve cause a blind spot as people try to go around the 

parked cars. Recommend a no parking sign between signs in the curve, on the north side of the 

road. The South side already has no parking. Or recommending no parking on the north side of 

Hilltop Dr. 300 feet from Pedersen St.  This might cause problems for people that live on the 

100 block of Hilltop Drive.  People seem to park vehicle for an extended period of time in this 

area. 
 
Recommend a Stop Sign to be Place on Dawson Drive 

The Police Department would like a stop sign to be placed on Dawson Drive (south bound) 

where is intersects with West Main St.  Main Street already carries a significant amount of 

vehicle traffic.  When Dawson Drive opens up that also will carry a significant amount of traffic.   

 

Recommend a four way stop for Cedar/Johnson County road where it intersects with 350th 

Street and Greenview Drive. 

The police department has been asked to review the traffic control situation at Cedar/Johnson 

County Road where it intersects with 350th St / Greenview Drive.   With the construction of new 

event center, this will cause an increase in traffic flow. We will have a large influx of people 

coming from outside of the city that are not familiar with this intersection.    The three way 

intersections can be confusing, even when properly sign posted. The police department would 

like to have a four way stop sign, put at that intersection.  There should be signs that indicates 

that there is an upcoming intersection. North of the event center, on Cedar/Johnson road the city 

should indicate that there is a “level B” road ahead. (North Bound)   Cedar/ Johnson County road 

is now zoned as residential.  

 

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

Cedar/Johnson County road where it intersects with 350th Street and Greenview Drive. 

 
 

Recommend Speed Zone Change to a residential speed of 25 mph.  

There will also be other intersecting roads that flow into the Cedar/Johnson county road.     It is 

my recommendation that Cedar/Johnson County road be sign posted 25 mph. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Direction / Feedback from City Council 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item:  A Clarification on the City Council’s Direction 

Regarding a Year Test Program to Establish Alcohol Retail at the Cubby 

Park Pavilion.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND: As the city moves closer to Cubby Parks grand opening this topic has gotten much 

discussion; frankly with mixed reviews.  There appears to be three schools of thought regarding this 

matter: 

1. Allow the sales and limited consumption of Alcohol in Cubby Park. 

2. Do not allow the sale or consumption of Alcohol in Cubby Park. 

3. Do not allow the sale of alcohol, but allow the consumption of alcohol. 

Typically, Opponents of drinking in public argue that it encourages overconsumption of alcohol, binge 

drinking, rowdiness, and potential violence.  Therefore, people should instead drink at private 

businesses such as bars or clubs, where a bartender may prevent overconsumption and where rowdiness 

can be better controlled by the fact that one is sitting down and security may be present.   

It should be noted: that many opponents typically believe that public entities that sale of alcohol open 

the public entity to tremendous risk. However research shows that communities that have adopted the 

sale alcohol are typically accredited with low incidents and low insurance expenses. 

Proponents of the right to drink in public spaces argue that it does not itself cause problems and rather 

that it is social problems that cause over-consumption and violence, pointing to countries that allow 

drinking in public but have low levels of associated overconsumption and violence. Proponents further 

argue that if managed well drinking in public helps normalize attitudes and can serve an economic 

engine for the community and support a healthier drinking culture. 

This item is to get a clear direction, if staff should continue to pursue City Council’s earlier direction, or 

should staff move in a different direction.  Staff is prepared to move in the any direction deemed 

appropriate by the City Council.  However, like the community there are healthy mixed points of view 

from the staff perspective as well (Please see attached memos). 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek City Council Direction – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Regarding Policy on Waivers for Sewer Service Charges. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  October 3, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  

Upon further research in the matter the West Branch Code of Ordinances states that customers shall 

pay sewer charges which are equal to the current rate of water service.  We also understand the code 

to say customers have the ability secure at their own expense a separate water meter to measure 

water for gardens and lawns; however, short of this remedy the sewer customer is obligated to pay 

the sewer fee as provided in the code (highlighted below – see attached entire sections of the code 

which apply). 
  
91.11 SECOND WATER METER. Customers may, at their own expense, install a separate water 

meter to measure water used for gardens and lawns. 
 
92.04 BILLING FOR WATER SERVICE. Water service shall be billed as part of a combined 

service account, payable in accordance with the following: 
 
 5.  Billing Corrections. Any error in the billing of the amount of usage or the rate billed for said 

usage shall be corrected by the Billing Clerk upon discovery and confirmation of said error. No other 

reductions shall be made to the amount of water in gallons billed or to the rate at which it is billed 

once the water has passed through the meter and is recorded. (Ord. 656 – May 09 Supp.) 
 
99.01 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REQUIRED. Every customer shall pay to the City sewer 

service fees as hereinafter provided. (Code of Iowa, Sec. 384.84)  
 
99.02 RATE. Pursuant to Section 91.11, customers may install a separate meter to measure water 

which is not discharged into the sanitary sewer system. (Ord. 644 – Aug. 08 Supp.) Each customer 

shall pay sewer service charges for the use of and for the service supplied by the municipal sanitary 

sewer system based upon the amount of water consumed as follows: Equal to the current rate for 

service of water usage specified in Chapter 92 “WATER RATES” Section 92.02 “RATES FOR 

SERVICE” of this Code. (Ord. 665 – Mar. 11 Supp.) (Code of Iowa, Sec. 384.84) 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1820 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Sewer Credit for Millie Verlo (424 E. Main Street). 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 4, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Resident, Millie Verlo attended the September 16, 2019 City Council meeting and asked for a 

partial sewer credit due to a garden hose being left on for watering a garden on her property.   

 

Ms. Verlo’s monthly usage averages less than 1700 gallons, equating to a minimum monthly 

charge of $35.05.  During the billing cycle of July 19, 2019 to August 19, 2019, her usage was 

26,000 as the result of the hose incident.  The September bill for this usage was $424.98.   

 

The City Council verbally approved her request.  Staff calculated the credit for the excess sewer 

billed to Ms. Verlo to be in the amount of $194.75.  Should the Council approve her request, a 

credit of $194.75 will be added to Ms. Verlo’s account. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Legal Opinion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Sewer Credit for James McLain, 700 Sullivan 

Street. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 4, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Resident, James McLain attended the September 3, 2019 City Council meeting and asked for a 

partial sewer credit for watering his property (grass and flowers) during the summer of 2019.  

McLain said he has only lived in West Branch for a little over than a year and was aware that 

the City loaned out landscape meters to track outdoor water usage. 

 

Mr. McLain’s monthly usage averages approximately 3700 gallons each month. During the 

billing cycle of June 21, 2019 to August 19, 2019, his usage was 28,000 as the result of his 

watering habits.  McLain’s August bill totaled $136.13, and his September bill totaled $328.70.   

 

The City Council previously denied his request, but since reconsidered the request.  Staff 

calculated the credit for the excess sewer billed to Mr. McLain to be in the amount of $155.80.  

Should the Council approve his request, a credit of $155.80 will be added to Mr. McLain’s 

account. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seek Legal Opinion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1840 – Approving a Professional Service Agreement with 

Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification in the Amount of $7,000. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 2, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The West Branch Code of Ordinances was last re-codified in May 2015.  Since that time, 36 new 

ordinances have been passed by the City Council.  Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification has 

reviewed the West Branch City Code and ordinances passed since the last re-codification and 

determined that a full update is needed at this time. 

 

It is now time to re-codify our City Code to incorporate those changes and to update the Code to 

reflect legislative changes since May 2015.  Deputy Clerk Brick will work closely with 

Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification to ensure the Code is updated to reflect those changes.   

 

The quote received from the vendor includes a searchable online version of the Code once 

updated and is recommended by staff to purchase this option to allow easier access of ordinance 

information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1840 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1840 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

SIMMERING-CORY, IOWA CODIFICATION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,000. 

 

  WHEREAS, Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification, Inc. has provided 

supplemental codification services to the City of West Branch in the past; and   

 

  WHEREAS, the City of West Branch has found these services to be of high 

quality and reasonably priced; and 

 

  WHEREAS, Simmering-Cory, Iowa Codification, Inc. has provided the City of 

West Branch with an agreement to provide a full update to the City Code by codifying 

Ordinances adopted from May 2015 to current and to provide the City with the necessary 

proceedings for the City Code to be readopted; and 

 

WHEREAS, the cost to complete the full update and readopt the City Code is 

$5,500; and 

 

WHEREAS, the cost to have an online Code option is estimated to be $1,000, 

plus an additional $500 for annual maintenance; and  

 

  WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Iowa that the aforementioned agreement with Simmering-Cory, Iowa 

Codification, Inc. of Storm Lake, Iowa, is hereby approved.  Further, the Mayor is directed to 

execute the agreement on behalf of the City. 

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1844 – Accepting the Low Quotes for the Demolition and 

Salvage of Structures A and B at 325 E. Green Street (A.K.A. the Former 

Croell Ready Mix Site). 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  October 4, 2019  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As the City Council is aware it has been a top objective and goal prepare as much as possible 

the down east redevelopment site (also known as the Former Croell Ready Mix Site).  The city 

is looking for a creative approach to development that accommodates entertainment venues such 

as a city market, hotel, housing, brewery and/or other significant mixed-used developments on 

the site (all ideas will get considerable review and investigation).  As a part of these efforts the 

city has obtained the Derelict Building Grant.  This is administered by the Department of Natural 

Resources.  Due to weather related delays in the construction industry a grant extension with 

new project deadlines was extended. 

 

This item will allow our predevelopment efforts to continue with the hopes to make this project 

more appealing for potential developers as the site gets cleaned up. 

 

Structure A will be demolished for a payment to the city of $1.00 dollar (There is a $100.00 state 

permit fee that the city may want to incur because the next closest bid is $1,700). 

 

Structure B will be demolished for a quote of $1,900. 

 

The quotation requirements and specification for demolition and salvage is attached with agenda 

item. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve this Resolution 1844 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1844 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE LOW QUOTES FOR THE DEMOLITION AND 

SALVAGE OF STRUCTURES A AND B AT 325 E. GREEN STREET (A.K.A. THE 

FORMER CROELL READY MIX SITE). 

 

WHEREAS, The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement 

company operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street and while planning for a plant 

expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in this 

transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the 

National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line 

and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park 

property for the aforementioned 4 acre site; and 

 

 WHEREAS, quotes were received for the demolition and salvage of structures on the 

aforementioned site; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mad Kat Farm, Inc. has provided a quote for paying a $1.00 to the City of 

West Branch for the demolition and salvage of structure A; and 

 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. has provided a quote for the 

demolition and salvage of structure B for a charge of $1,900.00; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said agreement.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that 

Authorize the City Administrator to enter into said agreements with both Mad Kat Farms Inc. 

and Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC for the services of demolition and salvage of structures 

A and B on 325 E. Green Street also known as the former Croell ready-mix property. 

 

* * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 7th day of October, 2019. 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Colton Miller, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  October 7, 2019 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Accept a Quote from Alpha Graphics in the Amount of 

$692.34 for printing and mailing services for a postcard mailing regarding 

the Capital Improvement Reserve Levy which will be on the November 

Ballot. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  October 4, 2019  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

As presented in Iowa State Code 384.7 entitled “Capital Improvement Fund”; A City may establish a 

capital improvement reserve fund, and may certify taxes not to exceed sixty-seven and one-half cents 

per thousand dollars of taxable value each year to be levied for the fund for the purpose of 

accumulating moneys for the financing of specified capital improvements, or carrying out a specific 

capital improvement plan. 
 
With the heavy investment the city has made with regard to its parks and infrastructure it has reached 

high levels in our overall debt capacity.  The city has been aggressively pursuing retiring this debt.  

Establishing a Capital Improvement Reserve Levy would allow the city to maintain state allowable 

levy levels that are currently servicing today’s debt levels, and accumulate a portion of the levy not 

consumed by our debt service in a capital improvement reserve.  As we pay down our debt levels we 

could maintain our current overall debt service levels and apply the levy not directly applied for debt 

service needs into a Capital Improvement Reserve.   
 
In the long run this will give the city the benefit to fund smaller capital improvement project (such as 

downtown streetscaping, trails and/or sidewalk projects) without going out for expensive financing or 

bond issues that could have restrictions as to the use of funds.  In time, this measure could allow capital 

equipment replacements (such as Police, Parks, and Public Works vehicle replacement) without 

placing demands on general fund which could result in peaks and valleys in the city’s tax rate.  In 

other words, this ability would be a stabling factor that would assist an even or stable tax rate. 
 
This item will allow the city to send out an informational post card that only explains the proposed 

ballot measure. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 

 

 


